
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Monday 8 September 2014 - 7.00 pm 
160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 

 

Membership 

 

Reserves 
Councillor Gavin Edwards (Chair) 
Councillor Rosie Shimell (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Anood Al-Samerai 
Councillor Jasmine Ali 
Councillor Catherine Dale 
Councillor Karl Eastham 
Councillor Tom Flynn 
Councillor Rebecca Lury 
Councillor Claire Maugham 
Councillor Adele Morris 
Councillor Johnson Situ 
 

Councillor Evelyn Akoto 
Councillor Maisie Anderson 
Councillor James Barber 
Councillor Dan Garfield 
Councillor Jon Hartley 
Councillor Hamish McCallum 
Councillor David Noakes 
Councillor Martin Seaton 
Councillor Bill Williams 
Councillor Kieron Williams 
 

Education representatives  
Reverend Nicholas Elder, Church of England Diocese 
Lynette Murphy-O'Dwyer, Archdiocese of Southwark 
Abdul Raheem Musa, Parent Governor Representative 
George Ogbonna, Parent Governor Representtaive 
 
 

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 

Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as 
the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an elderly 
dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you may claim an 
allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building access, 
translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Contact 
Peter Roberts on 020 7525 4350 or email: peter.roberts@southwark.gov.uk  
 
 

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
 
Eleanor Kelly 
Chief Executive 
 
Date: 26 August 2014  

 

Open Agenda



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Monday 8 September 2014 
7.00 pm 

160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 
 
 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item No. Title Page No. 
 

 PART A - OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

 In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear working days of the meeting. 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

4. MINUTES 
 

1 - 10 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the open section of the 
meeting held on 14 July 2014. 
 

 

5. CABINET MEMBER INTERVIEW - COUNCILLOR PETER JOHN, 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

 

 

 Themes for interview: 
 
Cabinet performance 
 
Communications 
 
Jobs and growth 
 
Bakerloo Line extension 
 
Housing strategy and 11,000 homes pledge 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

 Strategic partnerships and relationships with government and the Mayor of 
London 
 
Legal services 
 
Electoral registration 
 
The workforce strategy 
 
Corporate Procurement 
 
School places 
 
Free Swim and Gym 
 

 

6. SCHOOL PLACES STRATEGY 
 

 

 Representatives from the Charter School Education Trust and the Parent-
led Steering Group for the New Secondary School for East Dulwich 
Campaign have been invited to address the committee. 
 

 

7. PECKHAM RYE STATION REDEVELOPMENT - UPDATE 
 

11 - 15 

8. CORPORATE PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 
 

To follow 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE 
START OF THE MEETING. 
 

 

 PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS 
 

 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY CLOSED ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START 
OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT. 
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

 
Date:  26 August 2014 
 



1 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 14 July 2014 
 

 
 
 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee held on Monday 14 July 2014 at 
7.00 pm at 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Gavin Edwards (Chair) 

Councillor Anood Al-Samerai 
Councillor Jasmine Ali 
Councillor Catherine Dale 
Councillor Karl Eastham 
Councillor Tom Flynn 
Councillor Claire Maugham 
Councillor David Noakes 
Councillor Adele Morris 
Councillor Johnson Situ 
Councillor Bill Williams 
 

EDUCATION 
REPRESENTATIVES: 

George Ogbonna, Parent Governor Representative 
 

  
OTHER MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor Richard Livingstone, Cabinet Member for Housing 
 

ALSO PRESENT: 
 

Mr Mick Barnard, Member of the Public 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

Zoe Bulmer, Customer Resolution Manager 
Shelley Burke, Head of Overview & Scrutiny 
Andrew Brown, Head of Regeneration - Capital Projects 
Norman Coombe, Legal Services 
Kerry Crichlow, Director Strategy & Commissioning, 
Children's & Adults' Services 
David Markham, Head of Major Works 
Ferenc Morath, Investment Manager, Housing & Community 
Services 
Gerri Scott, Strategic Director of Housing and Community 
Services 
Richard Selley, Head of Customer Experience 
Peter Roberts, Scrutiny Project Manager 
 

 
 

Open Agenda
1

Agenda Item 4



2 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 14 July 2014 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES  
 

 1.1 Apologies for absence were received from the vice-chair, Councillor Rosie Shimell, 
and from Councillor Rebecca Lury, and for lateness from Councillor Anood Al-
Samerai.  Councillors David Noakes and Bill Williams attended as reserves. 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 2.1 There were no urgent items of business. 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 3.1 The chair, Councillor Gavin Edwards, declared an interest in item 4 on the school 
places strategy, as he had two pre-school children.  Councillor jasmine Ali declared 
a similar interest as she had two children.  Councillor Claire Maugham and Mr 
George Ogbona declared interests as chairs of governors and having children.  
Councillor Bill Williams declared an interest as a school governor. 

 

4. MINUTES  
 

 4.1 Councillor Adele Morris moved corrections to the minutes as follows: 
 

- paragraph 6.2, to show that Councillor Morris had emphasised the importance 
of putting interview dates in the diaries of cabinet members as soon as possible 

 
- paragraph 6.5, to show that Councillor Morris had raised the concern about 

availability of land 
 
4.2 Councillor Claire Maugham asked for paragraph 6.4 to include a question she had 

raised about how to engage with TMOs in the delivery of new homes.  Officers had 
outlined their commitment to this. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, subject to the above amendments, the minutes of the meeting held on 
25 June 2014 be agreed as a correct record. 

 

5. MANAGEMENT OF COMPLEX COMPLAINTS  
 

 5.1 The Customer Resolution Manager, Zoe Bulmer, introduced the report. 
 
5.2 Councillor David Noakes sought assurance that a council decision not to escalate 

a complaint did not prevent a complainant applying to the Local Government 
Ombudsman.  The Customer Resolution Manager confirmed that this option 
remained open to the complainant and that on occasion the council advised 
complainants to take this route as the council’s decision was unlikely to change.  

2



3 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 14 July 2014 
 

The chair, Councillor Gavin Edwards, asked the grounds on which a decision might 
be changed.  The Customer Resolution Manager indicated that it would be 
possible to provide statistics on how often a decision was changed.  She explained 
that often a complaint required action, for instance completion of a repair, and the 
focus in such cases was on resolution.  In other cases, such as planning 
applications, the council needed to demonstrate that a particular process had been 
correctly followed. 

 
5.3 Councillor Noakes also questioned whether the target for responding to stage 1 

and stage 2 of the complaints process was always met.  The Customer Resolution 
Manager clarified the deadlines and confirmed that the deadline for stage 2 was 
almost always met.  In the case of stage 1, it was sometimes preferable to go 
beyond the deadline in order to allow time for a complaint to be resolved.  The 
Customer Resolution Manager also reported that the response times to Members’ 
Enquiries had also improved with 99% of repairs responses meeting the ten day 
deadline in the last quarter. 

 
5.4 Councillor Johnson Situ asked how complaints which related to several services 

were dealt with.  The Customer Resolution Manager replied that, if a complaint was 
complex and involved different departments, the council would tell the complainant 
that the response might take longer.  She explained that in these cases the council 
would often acknowledge the complaint by telephone and explain the process to 
the complainant.  There was also the option to log the complaint as two separate 
complaints.  Councillor Claire Maugham wondered what the council was doing to 
assess residents’ experience of the complaints process.  The Customer Resolution 
Manager stressed that this was a priority.  One aim was to put the customer 
satisfaction process online.  It would then be possible to provide a link to an online 
survey in the letter which outlined the council’s response to the complaint.  The 
Head of Customer Experience, Richard Selley, added that customer services and 
the contact centre were looking for opportunities to intervene as soon as possible 
and to resolve issues before they became formal complaints. 

 
5.5 Councillor Tom Flynn highlighted paragraph 32 of the report.  He wondered 

whether the number of complaints from the public went down because members 
were picking up and pursuing complaints on behalf of their constituents.  He 
particularly wondered if this was the case where residents were not confident to 
complain directly to the council.  The Customer Resolution Manager suggested 
that, where complaints had increased across services in the run-up to an election, 
this might suggest that party campaigning encouraged residents to think about the 
services they received.  It was important to ensure that residents knew how to raise 
concerns.  The Head of Customer Experience emphasised that not all members’ 
enquiries related to complaints. 

 
5.6 Councillor Jasmine Ali questioned how good the council was at communicating 

about its services with the recipients of social care.  The Customer Resolution 
Manager reported that her team managed the adults’ and children’s services 
complaints process.  Her team had brought experience and expertise to help 
people understand how complaints could be made.  Specifically, they had reviewed 
leaflets and publicity and renewed the website. 

 
 

3



4 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 14 July 2014 
 

5.7 Councillor Adele Morris acknowledged the improvement in housing repairs, 
particularly where jobs were no longer being closed before they had been complete 
to tenants’ satisfaction.  She asked how this had been achieved.  The Customer 
Resolution Manager stressed the importance of learning from complaints.  Housing 
repairs were a key issue where the council had been keen to learn from complaints 
and to make improvements.  The customer satisfaction survey was vital and issues 
had been raised directly with contractors.  The Head of Customer Experience 
added that he would expect jobs to be closed only when the customer confirmed 
that they were completed.  If an email address had been provided by the tenants 
then the customer satisfaction survey was sent to them direct.  In addition, a 
proportion of customers received a telephone call inviting their comments. 

 
5.8 The chair invited Mr Mick Barnard, a member of the public who had prompted the 

committee’s discussion of how the council addressed complex complaints, to make 
any comments.  Mr Barnard was concerned that the issues had been over-
simplified.  His complaint had stretched over five years and he had been 
designated a habitual complainant twice.  At times officers had appeared to be in 
conflict over how his complaint should be processed.  The chair asked whether 
there was one thing Mr Barnard would like to change about the process.  Mr 
Barnard stated that people needed to know what the process was. 

 
5.9 The chair was interested in what purchase the complaints team had on officers in 

other departments, in terms of being able to dig into particular issues.  The Head of 
Customer Experience explained that the team provided its expertise to other 
departments and co-ordinated responses to complaints.  It also published details of 
the departments’ speed of response to complaints and this information was 
available to senior officers.  The Head of Customer Experience added that the 
team had a greater role within the housing department.  The chair of the committee 
also asked to what extent the information provided by the complaints team 
contributed to policy making.  The Customer Resolution Manager responded that 
the work of the team helped to identify failings and challenges.  It might identify an 
absence of policy or help to make improvements to existing policy. 

 
5.10 Councillor David Noakes asked whether complainants were given a timescale for 

the redress of complaints, for instance in terms of works being followed up and 
completed, and whether monitoring took place to ensure that this work was done.  
The Customer Resolution Manager confirmed that, depending on the nature of the 
repair in question, a timescale was provided.  If necessary this could be escalated 
to the attention of senior staff.  The Head of Customer Experience stated that a 
monthly liaison meeting took place with colleagues in the repairs team, focusing on 
the oldest of any outstanding complaints.  The Customer Resolution Manager 
added that the complaints team did outreach work with contractors, council officers 
working in repairs and with the contact centre. 

 
5.11 The chair of the committee thanked officers for the briefing.  He asked for further 

information on departmental statistics and how these were used and for figures 
over time. 

 

4



5 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 14 July 2014 
 

 

6. SCHOOL PLACES STRATEGY UPDATE  
 

 6.1 Andrew Brown, Head of Regeneration Capital Projects, introduced the report and 
added details from the School Places Strategy Update due to be considered by 
cabinet the following week.  The demand for primary school places would soon 
outstrip supply in the North of the borough.  One proposal to cabinet for the North 
of the borough was to expand the Phoenix Primary School, following a capacity 
study of the school’s annex site indicating that an additional two forms of entry 
were possible.  Another proposal, subject to the agreement of the governing body, 
was to expand Keyworth Primary School from one and a half to three forms of 
entry (the school was already included in the primary schools programme for an 
additional half form of entry). 

 
6.2 In terms of secondary school places, the Head of Regeneration Capital Projects 

explained that, while there was currently an overall surplus, a further nineteen 
forms of entry would be required across the borough by September 2019.  There 
were different strands of proposals intended to address this, including the 
expansion of existing schools and new school initiatives.  Four schools had already 
expressed an interest in expansion and a further invitation had been extended to 
all secondary schools.  The council was talking to St Michael’s Catholic College 
and other schools about developing proposals.  An estimated six forms of entry 
could be expected from this route. 

 
6.3 The Head of Regeneration Capital Projects reported that the council was also 

engaging with the Haberdashers’ Aske’s Federation and the Charter School 
Educational Trust, both of which had expressed an interest in establishing new 
schools on the Dulwich Hospital site.  This could achieve a further six forms of 
entry.  To support this, the council was also engaging with NHS Property Services 
about the hospital site, which would become available in 2017 at the earliest.  The 
council was also looking at the possibility of alternative sites. 

 
6.4 The chair, Councillor Gavin Edwards, asked whether applications to establish free 

schools made it difficult to plan the supply of school places across the borough.  
The Head of Regeneration Capital Projects replied that it made planning less 
predictable, adding that the Harris Federation free primary school in Nunhead 
would offer two forms of entry from 2015 and would have a significant effect.  
Councillor Johnson Situ asked whether there were transport issues connected with 
extending existing schools.  The Head of Regeneration Capital Projects indicated 
that these had not been raised as a concern.  The Charter Trust was interested in 
Dulwich Hospital as a site close to its existing school as it allowed them to continue 
to serve a diverse community in that specific locality.  Haberdashers’ Federation 
wanted to establish a clutch of schools in the Southwark/Lewisham area.  The 
Director of Strategy & Commissioning, Kerry Crichlow, agreed that there would be 
a greater volume of young people travelling and that there was an opportunity to 
talk to Transport for London about how to manage this. 

 
6.5 Councillor Claire Maugham indicated that she was chair of governors of one of the 

schools included in the capital programme for primary school expansion.  She 
reported that there was a lack of clarity about the budget and whether it included 

5



6 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 14 July 2014 
 

funding for investment in kitchens and for investment relating to provision for two 
year olds.  The Head of Regeneration Capital Projects responded that a lot of 
development of budgets was still required.  Any current figures should be seen as 
notional as there were no firm designs as yet and any initial figures had been 
suggested during the recession and could now be significantly different.  The 
council needed to identify the best way to respond to the need for expansion.  The 
Director of Strategy & Commissioning agreed that a lot more thinking was required 
around delivering the offer for two year olds and free healthy school meals.  The 
answer would not necessarily mean that all school kitchens would be re-built.  The 
Head of Regeneration Capital Projects added that consultants were being asked to 
advise on costs including building costs. 

 
6.6 Councillor Anood Al-Samerai asked whether there was an ideal size of primary 

school and an ideal distance for children to travel.  She also asked how many 
forms of entry currently existed at the Phoenix Primary School and its Ofsted 
rating.  The Director of Strategy & Commissioning responded that two miles was 
considered a sensible distance for primary school children to travel but that there 
was no generally agreed ideal size.  In terms of suitability for expansion, the 
council would look at a combination of things including whether a school had a 
strong leadership, its focus on teaching and learning and its Ofsted inspection.  
94% of the schools being considered for expansion had received a good or 
outstanding rating.  In terms of Phoenix Primary School, the Head of Regeneration 
Capital Projects reminded the committee that the school had been included in the 
long list submitted to Cabinet last July.  The school had two forms of entry, was 
very keen to expand and had a site suitable for development.  It had an Ofsted 
rating of good and improving. 

 
6.7 Councillor Karl Eastham asked for further information about the amount of control 

the council had over free schools, the extent it worked with applications for free 
schools and whether any schools were interested in opening a free secondary 
school.  The Director of Strategy & Commissioning clarified that free schools were 
able to apply to open where they wished but that it was in everyone’s interest to try 
and match supply and demand.  The council had influence but not a lot of power, 
the final decision was taken by the Secretary of State.  In terms of the Harris free 
school in Nunhead, the council was looking to help the Federation secure a site 
and the council had also worked closely with the sponsor of the Belham school. 

 
6.8 Councillor David Noakes asked whether a different approach was being taken to 

primary school places as opposed to secondary, primary schools being extended 
while new secondary schools were being proposed.  The Head of Regeneration 
Capital Projects emphasised that eighteen additional forms of entry were needed 
at the secondary level by 2018 and that this could not be achieved by extending 
existing schools.  A new secondary school would provide six forms of entry.  The 
Director of Strategy & Commissioning added that free schools were the only option 
in terms of establishing new provision and that providers had the same values and 
ambitions as the council.  Councillor Jasmine Ali asked whether free schools and 
academies were as focussed as the council was on the most disadvantaged 
children in the borough.  The Director of Strategy & Commissioning agreed that it 
was important to ask this question and to assess the progress of all young people.  
The council needed to develop different levers in order to bring its influence to bear 
in this area. 

6



7 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 14 July 2014 
 

 
6.9 Councillor Adele Morris wondered how the council could work with for example 

Foundation and Church of England schools to ensure that they reached a level 
where increasing forms of entry might be considered.  The Head of Regeneration 
Capital Projects explained that capacity studies of the various schools existed.  
Some diocesan schools were keen to expand but many sites were already tight for 
space.  The council aimed to visit schools and discuss with them the possibility of 
expansion.  The Director of Strategy & Commissioning stressed that the council 
had a clear idea of schools’ performance and aimed to help every school to do its 
best for all its pupils. 

 
6.10 The chair asked for details of the vacancy rates at Harris secondary schools and 

how these compared with other schools in the borough.  The Director of Strategy & 
Commissioning believed that there were possibly more vacancies than in other 
schools and agreed to provide details to the committee.  She also identified a 
problem in that small numbers of parents were not choosing particular schools and 
that this needed to be addressed.  The chair agreed that there appeared to be a 
reputational lag in respect of some schools where, despite good performance, 
parents were not choosing them for their children.  He wondered what could be 
done to deal with this issue.  The Director of Strategy & Commissioning confirmed 
that this issue existed at both primary and secondary level.  Members could play a 
part by becoming school governors and by encouraging constituents to visit 
schools with their children.  She also highlighted the practical issue that in the 
coming year and next there would be a surplus of secondary places.  The council 
would have to support schools through this in view of the subsequent increased 
demand for places.  Some schools might find it difficult to balance their budgets. 

 
6.11 The chair asked whether it might be beneficial to draw up a protocol or set of 

standards for engagement with the council to which head teachers and free 
schools could be invited to sign up.  The Director of Strategy & Commissioning 
replied that this would be worth considering as a way of schools demonstrating 
their commitment to the education of all Southwark children. 

 
6.12 The chair suggested that the vice-chair and himself meet with officers to gather 

further information and that this be followed up at a future meeting of the 
committee to which the cabinet member, parents of a free school and 
representatives of the Harris federation could be invited. 

 

7. DRAPER HOUSE - UPDATE ON SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

 7.1 The Head of Major Works, David Markham, introduced the report.  The Cabinet 
Member for Housing, Councillor Richard Livingstone, apologised to residents for 
delays in the major works to Draper House and stated that he would be attending 
the next Tenants’ & Residents’ Association meeting and its general meeting in 
September.  He also highlighted the independent investigation by Claer Lloyd-
Jones into the delivery of the works and that the council would be considering her 
report.  The cabinet member also thanked the committee for its observations which 
had helped to shape the council’s thinking about Draper House.  He hoped that the 
update adequately addressed the committee’s earlier recommendations. 

 

7



8 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 14 July 2014 
 

7.2 Councillor Adele Morris asked the process for consideration of the independent 
report.  She also asked about the extent of communication between the project 
team and residents, commenting that ward councillors were not adequately 
informed about work on the Four Squares Estate.  Councillor Morris stressed the 
need to clarify technical information and for a clear schedule of the ongoing works.  
The Strategic Director Housing & Community Services, Gerri Scott, explained that 
the independent report would be openly available and communicated widely, 
including to residents of Draper House.  The cabinet and cabinet member for 
housing would consider its recommendations.  The Head of Major Works stated 
that the council always tried to update ward councillors but agreed that the council 
needed to get better at communicating technical information to residents.  He 
emphasised however that there was a range of officers that residents could contact 
for information.  Councillor Livingstone added that on projects such as Draper 
House, the Four Squares and Lakanal House, the use of an independent tenants’ 
friend had proved very useful.  Councillor Anood Al-Samerai commented that many 
residents did not have the time to contact officers or a tenants’ friend and that clear 
and regular communication was essential. 

 
7.3 Councillor Tom Flynn referred to the response to the committee’s earlier 

recommendation that all major works contracts should contain termination at will 
clauses which stated that this would be considered on a case by case basis.  He 
asked whether the possible costs of getting out of contracts was factored in to this.  
The Head of Major Works clarified that this approach allowed the possibility of 
imposing such a clause if it was needed.  He also explained that the council was 
moving towards the position of appointing one contractor for one scheme.  The 
Strategic Director added that different types of contract were needed for different 
types of work.  Contracts for major works were partnering contracts. 

 
7.4 Councillor David Noakes returned to concerns about the quality of the council’s 

communication with residents.  He wondered how good practice was embedded in 
the work of project teams and whether street properties were treated differently to 
estates.  The Head of Major Works replied that street properties were a challenge 
was they could be scattered over a wide area.  The responses to initial consultation 
on street properties could be quite low and the council was trying to address this.  
The Strategic Director indicated that the issue of communication was a main theme 
in the independent investigation.  The council needed to look beyond its normal 
practices at how to involve residents without their needing to, for instance, attend 
meetings. 

 
7.5 Councillor Catherine Dale highlighted recommendation h of the committee’s earlier 

scrutiny review in respect of appointing project management teams.  She asked 
how the council could be confident that the team now in place was effective and 
was picking up the right issues.  The Head of Major Works clarified that an 
additional manager was now in place to pick up and respond to issues.  A clear 
reporting mechanism was in place that included the design and delivery manager, 
investment manager and regular meetings with project teams and allowed any 
training needs to be identified.  Councillor Dale also asked for an explanation as to 
the difference between the issues and complaints logs.  The Investment Manager, 
Ferenc Morath, explained that the complaints log was for specific residents’ issues 
while the issues log related to larger issues on contracts.  He confirmed that 
nothing was removed from the logs without agreement by residents.  The Strategic 

8



9 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 14 July 2014 
 

Director added that, as part of her preliminary investigation, Claer Lloyd-Jones had 
suggested that the issues log was insufficient and, as a result of this, meetings 
were now minuted. 

 
7.6 Councillor Jasmine Ali asked whether the scale of intervention in the Draper House 

contract was sustainable.  The Head of Major Works replied that the standard of 
contract monitoring had not been adequate and residents’ feedback had not been 
taken up but that these issues had been addressed within the new project team.  
Early learning from residents on an estate was essential and future contracts would 
take account of this and the scheme of management put in place at Draper House.  
The Strategic Director agreed that there had been a number of failings in 
management practice in respect of Draper House.  She acknowledged that a real 
issue of trust and confidence now existed in respect of Draper House but that the 
independent investigation should provide a clear perspective on what the council 
needed to do differently in the future. 

 
7.7 The chair invited the chair and vice-chair of Draper House Tenants’ & Residents’ 

Association, Luisa Pretolani and Julian Adamoli, to address the committee.  Luisa 
Pretolani emphasised that there was a lot of disappointment amongst residents 
about being informed late in the day about the committee’s meeting this evening.  
Several other residents apart from the vice-chair and herself were keen to speak. 

 
7.8 Ms Pretolani reported that communication was still not good.  She stated that many 

of the points listed on page 10 of the report had already been in place but had not 
improved the situation for Draper House residents.  This was confirmed by Mr 
Adamoli.  Effective communication was essential and needed to be revised.  Ms 
Pretolani stated that residents were still not clear about funding, for instance it had 
been understood that the council did not have funding for the concierge but then 
the local contractor had stepped in to fund.  Residents were also no longer clear 
about the schedule for works – a newsletter received that morning had stated that 
the scaffolding would be down by the end of the month but it did not provide 
information about other works.  The project had already taken three years.  Ms 
Pretolani stressed that in the view of residents there had not been sufficient 
monitoring of the contract with the result that residents had to invest a lot of their 
own time in reporting problems.  The vice-chair and herself had spent whatever 
time they could on-site and were on call twenty-four/seven in an effort to mediate 
problems.  She felt that the council gave different responses to similar problems in 
different flats. 

 
7.9 The chair invited officers to respond to the issues raised by the Tenants’ & 

Residents’ Association.  The Strategic Director explained that she had met several 
times with Claer Lloyd-Jones who had fed back on action which could be taken 
quite quickly, for instance minuting meetings.  The Investment Manager clarified 
that there was a specific amount in the contract relating to the concierge but that 
this had been less than the costs identified.  As part of the community commitment 
the contractor had contributed at their own cost to this and also to work to the TRA 
hall.  In terms of communication, he explained that a number of changes had been 
made including increasing the number of meetings of the project team.  Weekly 
updates had been put on the notice board and the council had recently appointed 
an independent residents’ advisor.  The Investment Manager explained that, once 
the council began to consider terminating the contract with Breyer, communication 

9



10 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 14 July 2014 
 

with residents became restricted for legal and contractual reasons.  He 
acknowledged that it would have helped to appoint the independent residents’ 
advisor at that stage.  The Investment Manager confirmed that the report of the 
independent investigation into the major works at Draper House would be 
discussed with residents, alongside the scrutiny report, and would be considered 
by the cabinet.  In response to a further question from Councillor Al-Samerai, he 
also confirmed that the initial points of contact for residents were the project 
manager and clerk of works. 

 
7.10 In concluding consideration of the update, the chair asked that the report of the 

independent investigation be submitted to the committee for its consideration. 
 

8. CORPORATE PROCUREMENT STRATEGY  
 

 8.1 The chair, Councillor Gavin Edwards, reported that officers had not been available 
to introduce the corporate procurement strategy.  He had however met with the 
Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services, Duncan Whitfield, to talk 
through general issues around the large contracts that the council had entered into.  
The chair suggested that officers provide a report to the September meeting and 
that external speakers be invited to a future meeting of the committee.  The Head 
of Overview & Scrutiny, Shelley Burke, reported that John Tizard, a former head of 
public policy for Capita, would be attending the November meeting.  Councillor 
Jasmine Ali suggested that Judith Smyth of the Office for Pubic Management might 
be another speaker worth consideration.  The chair emphasised that one focus of 
the committee’s work would be that Southwark did not have a written corporate 
procurement strategy. 

 

9. WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 9.1 Items for inclusion in the committee’s work programme are detailed in the above 
items. 

 

  
 
The meeting ended at 9.30 pm 
 

 
 

10



 1 

 
 
Item No.  
 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
8 September 2014 

Meeting Name: 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Report title: 
 

Peckham Rye Station Redevelopment – Update 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 

The Lane 

From: 
 

Stephen Platts, Director of Regeneration 

 
 
Background 
 
1. The project is being delivered to unlock the potential of the station, associated 

railway arches and the immediate surroundings. The aim as highlighted in the 
Peckham and Nunhead Area Action Plan (PNAAP) is to create a public 
station square, resulting in a positive focal point for the area whilst unveiling 
the high quality heritage asset of the grade 2 listed station. 

 
2. This is a partnership project part funded by a grant of £5.5m from the Greater 

London Authority. The Council and Network Rail will also be investing 
considerable funding to secure the necessary Compulsory Purchase Orders 
(CPO’s), to reconfigure the retail offer, to build the new square and to create a 
fully accessible station.   

 
3. In 2012, Southwark Council with support from Network Rail undertook a 

feasibility / concept design study that was used to create a business appraisal 
to support the delivery of the project.  

 
4. In 2013, Weston Williamson architects were appointed to progress the 

scheme based on this feasibility / concept design study in order to be able to 
submit of a planning application.  In parallel with the design development, 
AOC were tasked part of the architect’s team to focus on community 
engagement. 

 
5. As part of the architects’ work, two stages of community consultation were 

undertaken to inform the preparation of proposals, in November 2013 and 
January 2014. The reports summarising the events prepared by AOC, form 
essential background of the reaction of the community to the original 
proposals and the subsequent agreement to modify the approach of the 
scheme.   

 
Feedback from consultation events 
 
6. In response to concerns raised from December consultation a wider outreach 

work was undertaken including attending Peckham and Nunhead Youth CC, 
leaflet drops, individual business visits, church meetings and Peckham Town 
Team meeting. 

 
7. There were 250 attendees throughout the consultation event on 18 January 

with 112 feedback forms received.  There were 40 attendees to the January 

11
Agenda Item 7



 2 

20 event. A total of 196 responses have been received to date (summarised 
below).   In addition 60 email letters or mini essays were received.  

 
 
Feedback forms 
summary 
 

1 
(Poor) 

2 3 4 5 
(Excellent)

_ 
Overall opinion of scheme 
(all comments) 

27% 24% 20.5% 21% 8% 

Overall opinion of scheme 
(from event) 

13% 24% 29% 25% 9% 

 
 
8. The two consultation exercises have proved useful in gathering feedback and 

they also raised questions from the community about the principle, scope and 
content of emerging plans, revealing a perception that the current plans do 
not reflect the aspirations of the local community. 

 
The initial scheme proposals 
 
9. Both Network Rail and LBS undertook viability assessments, overall figures 

contained below; 
• Vacant possession costs – circa £18m 
• Construction costs of overall scheme - £25m 
• Grant agreement - £11m (includes £670k spent already on station 

improvements) 
• Allocation within grant agreement for vacant possession costs - £7m 

 
10. Letters were also sent to all the businesses and leaseholders to explain 

current situation.  Network Rail was to arrange one to one meetings with the 
majority of the businesses in Dovedale Court and also committed to look for 
relocation options with the tenants. 

 
11. Network Rail and Weston Williamson have also held pre-application meetings 

with the LBS planners and have presented scheme to Design Review Panel. 
The main issues being: 
• Heights on Holly Grove and relationship to adjacent villa and 

conservation area.   
• Housing mix, 
• A request for a review of asymmetry/symmetry of massing across the 

site and relationship with 4 Holly Grove. 
 
The way forward 
 
12. A combination of the planners feedback and the opposition from local people, 

led Southwark Council and Network Rail to seek an extension to their current 
timescales from the GLA. The aspiration was that with a revised timescale 
and refreshed approach, the partners can ensure that plans could be 
developed with local people helping to shape the redevelopment.  

 
13. This re-profiling of the project programming is born of a genuine project team 

desire to engage local people, facilitate greater local influence on the project 
brief and design and to more thoroughly communicate the opportunities and 

12



 3 

challenges of delivering the project.  There is broad agreement across the 
client and design team that this is an opportunity to enrich the project. 

 
14. The result was the competitive tendering of a brief to consultants to undertake 

further consultation. The intention of this proposed appointment is to help 
develop a scheme that has the support of local residents and businesses 
through a “co-design” exercise.     

 
15. A team led by Ash Sakula were appointed in May 2014 following an interview 

with the project partners. The tender brief issued to Ash Sakula set out the 
partnership’s aspiration for Peckham Rye Station namely “an enhanced and 
enlarged public realm and associated active uses and a new approach to 
commercial uses within the existing station arcade and surrounding railway 
arches”.   

 
16. The brief they are working to clearly defines the project scope and objectives 

as agreed by the partners. However in the intervening period since the 
original design brief was issued to Weston Williamson /AOC, it is clear that 
the potential scope of the scheme has evolved, and indeed will continue to do 
so.  

 
17. The fundamental change is the scope of the potential council’s CPO. This can 

be summarised as: 
• 12-14 Blenheim Grove being omitted from the Council’s potential 

CPO. 
• Property owned by Bywater (Iceland and 4 Holly Grove) potentially 

becoming a separate application negating the need for CPO. 
• The council’s desire to negotiate with leaseholders to find alternative 

premises where ever possible to minimise the overall cost to the 
council of the CPO.       

 
18. For instance, on the latter point, early discussions with TSB has emphasised 

their desire to both remain in Peckham and to invest in the area. 
 

19. Therefore instead of what in effect was a master plan for the whole area 
resulting in the displacement of up to 60 local businesses, the approach now 
being adopted is one of evolving a design with local stakeholders. 

 
20. There are a number of reasons for this approach quite a part from those of 

cost to the public purse. It is the desire to minimise where possible the impact 
on local businesses and where impact is unavoidable do all that can be done 
to assist in making the transition as easy as possible. Also from a practical 
point of view, we are attempting to ensure that any CPO is robust against 
possible challenge at a hearing by being entirely necessary for the delivery of 
the scheme.  

 
21. As yet, discussions with leaseholders have been limited but are expected to 

run concurrently with the engagement programme.  Note that as these 
discussions progress whatever information that isn’t deemed to be 
commercially sensitive will be made available. 

 
 
 
 

13



 4 

Consultation and the Co-design process 
 
22. Co-design is a new approach by which collectively stakeholders design parts 

of the city. It means that residents, businesses, the council, landowners and 
other people with an interest in the area, get together and work out what is 
important to them and then use that information to influence the future of the 
area in a positive way. Co-design relies on the active participation of the local 
community to drive and shape the project.  

 
23. The process will include a Co-design shop, a website and a programme of 

events in order to involve a broad as possible range of local stakeholders. 
The comments, observations, ideas and aspirations will be analysed and 
summarised on a weekly basis during the programme and exhibited.  

 
24. The co-design process will address people’s aspirations for the wider area 

surrounding the station. It will however focus in on the station forecourt with a 
view to develop a detail design brief for this proposed space, helping the 
community to uncover what a public square in the centre of Peckham be like. 

 
25. The co-design “shop” is a pop-up space next to the station entrance. It utilises 

the old staircase room and will be opened Wednesday, Friday and Saturday 
for a period of eight weeks. By having a space it will allow an evolving display 
of aspirations and a physical presence to discuss the project with the 
community. 

 
26. The co-design shop along with other venues in Peckham will host a series of 

workshops where specific themes and topics can be explored in more depth. 
Workshops may involve walks, debates, model making, drawing, filming and 
photography, writing and other forms of expression.  The programme for 
these workshops will be available via the website and on a calendar in the 
shop. 

 
27. A co-design website (www.peckhamcodesign.org) has been set up by the 

project team.  The idea is that the website can provide a number of ways in 
which to participate while also act as an archive and online exhibition space 
to display all the material produced by the workshops and other forms of 
interaction.  

 
28. One part of the Ash Sakula team (Commonplace) has created an ‘app’ – an 

online mapping tool that allows residents, local businesses and other 
stakeholders to comment and create an overall map of opinions. Every 
comment made will displayed on a map of the wider Peckham area and 
publically show concerns, ideas and views of specific geographical places 
and specific spaces.  

 
29. As well as the technological tools, the team are developing a Co-Design 

Toolkit comprising of: 
• a letter box placed outside the station to allow opinion cards to be 

collected from commuters and local people when the shop is not 
open, 

• A blackboard to allow announcements of workshops and activities to 
be highlighted 

• An index box which will collect all the contributions and order them by 
theme. 

14



 5 

• A hanger to collate all the drawings produced. 
• A weekly update produced summarising all the previous weeks’ 

activities, observations and ideas. 
• And an Atlas of Aspirations – a document that summarises all the 

aspirations of the local communities and reflects the views and 
requirements of residents, commuters, businesses, organisations, 
local groups and stakeholders.   

 
30. The launch of the co-design process and the recruitment of local people to act 

as co-designers took place on 20th August.  A draft programme of workshops 
including treasure hunts, celebration of the architecture of Rye Lane, a 
breakfast club etc. is currently underdevelopment and detailed on the events 
section of the co-design website. 

 
Programme 
 
31. While the co-design process is going on, a detailed programme is being 

developed in conjunction with the GLA and Network Rail. This will include the 
scheme development, the timescales for the CPO’s (where required), 
planning consents, and the training and cultural programmes (both of which 
are part of the requirement of the GLA grant).  

 
32. Presently, council officers from the Property Department are starting the 

process of contacting and negotiating with current leaseholders that will be 
affected by the proposals. In addition the Local Economy team have 
commissioned GLE One London to provide support and advice on business 
matters related to relocation whenever this is appropriate although they are 
not responsible for general engagement / communications with businesses in 
Peckham.  

 
33. It is envisaged that the negotiation with tenants and leaseholders will run 

concurrently with the co-design process. 
 
34. A design brief for the station square will also be developed in the next two 

months although not finalised and agreed until the completion of the co-
design programme. If any new buildings are required as part of the delivery of 
the square, for instance to relocate existing businesses, then this design brief 
will also be produced with community input.  

 
35. The draft programme currently being developed will be reported to a project 

board (chaired by the Director of Regeneration and consisting of senior 
representatives from both Network Rail and the GLA) meeting on 5th 
September for agreement by project partners. 

 
 
 

26 August 2014 

15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally blank. 



 
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2014-15 
 
AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) 
 
NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Peter Roberts Tel: 020 7525 4350 
 

 
Name No of 

copies 
Name No of 

copies 
 
OSC Members 
 
Councillor Gavin Edwards (Chair) 
Councillor Rosie Shimell (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Anood Al-Samerai 
Councillor Jasmine Ali 
Councillor Catherine Dale 
Councillor Karl Eastham 
Councillor Tom Flynn 
Councillor Rebecca Lury 
Councillor Claire Maugham 
Councillor Adele Morris 
Councillor Johnson Situ 
 
Reserves 
 
Councillor Evelyn Akoto 
Councillor Maisie Anderson 
Councillor James Barber 
Councillor Dan Garfield 
Councillor Jon Hartley 
Councillor Hamish McCallum 
Councillor David Noakes 
Councillor Martin Seaton 
Councillor Bill Williams 
Councillor Kieron Williams 
(Vacancy) 
 
 
Education Representatives 
 
Revd Nicholas Elder 
Lynette Murphy-O’Dwyer 
Abdul Raheem Musa 
George Ogbonna 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
 
 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Council Officers 
 
Eleanor Kelly, Chief Executive 
Shelley Burke, Head of Overview & 
Scrutiny 
Norman Coombe, Legal Services 
Aine Gallagher, Political Assistant 
Tom Layfield, Opposition Assistant 
 
Scrutiny Team SPARES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Total: 40 
 
 
 
Dated: June 2014 
 

 
 
 
1 
1 
 
1 
1 
1 
 
10 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 Peckham Rye Station Redevelopment - Update
	 

